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INTEGRATED ASSET MANAGEMENT CORP. IS A PUBLIC COMPANY (TSX:IAM), MAJORITY-OWNED

BY DIRECTORS AND EMPLOYEES. IAM DEVELOPS AND MANAGES ALTERNATIVE INVESTMENTS

(INCLUDING PRIVATE DEBT AND REAL ESTATE) WHICH ENABLE INSTITUTIONAL INVESTORS,

SUCH AS PENSION FUNDS, ENDOWMENTS, FOUNDATIONS, INSURANCE COMPANIES AND

FAMILY OFFICES TO REDUCE RISK AND ENHANCE RETURNS IN THEIR PORTFOLIOS. WE

HAVE 23 INVESTMENT PROFESSIONALS AND MORE THAN 35 STAFF LOCATED IN TORONTO

AND MONTREAL.

OVER THE PAST 19 YEARS, WE HAVE BUILT SPECIALIZED TEAMS OF TALENTED, EXPERIENCED,

HIGHLY SUCCESSFUL INVESTMENT PROFESSIONALS. CONSERVATIVE AND PRUDENT, WE ARE

DETERMINED TO BE THE BEST IN TERMS OF INNOVATION, SERVICE AND CONSISTENTLY

SUPERIOR RISK-ADJUSTED RETURNS.
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OUR PRODUCT OFFERING IS DEEP AND NEW PRODUCTS ARE CONSTANTLY BEING DEVELOPED.

CLIENTS MAY CHOOSE FROM ESTABLISHED PRODUCTS OR WORK WITH ONE OR MORE IAM

INVESTMENT TEAMS TO DEVELOP A SOLUTION TAILORED TO SPECIFIC REQUIREMENTS. CLIENTS

MAY CHOOSE FROM:

• Managed portfolios of investment-grade
senior secured, fixed term loans

• Managed portfolios of non investment-grade
senior secured loans

• Managed portfolios of infrastructure debt

• Segregated portfolios of investment-grade 
senior secured, fixed term loans

OUR PRODUCTS

IAM Private Debt IAM Real Estate

• Discretionary funds investing primarily in         
industrial properties

• Segregated portfolios of various property
sectors combined with development projects

• Specialized closed-end funds
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2017 YEAR IN REVIEW
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Adjusted EBITDA
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Cash Flow
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REPORT TO SHAREHOLDERS 
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We first announced in 2014 our strategy of focusing on our two core businesses, private debt and real estate,
and becoming a pure-play institutional manager. The closing of the sale on March 31, 2017 of our Managed
Futures division completed the divestiture of non-core businesses.  The proceeds of the sale, combined with
the return of seed capital in a managed futures fund added approximately $3.2 million in cash. The Corporation
recorded a gain of $0.7 million on the sale. 

            By year end we had completed our first two quarters as a strictly institutional manager focused on
private debt and real estate. The results of this strategy are starting to be realized.  Revenues for the twelve
months were up approximately 20% over the same period in fiscal 2016, while expenses remained relatively
flat. Results in the fourth quarter were impacted by the lower deployment of assets, which can vary considerably
from quarter to quarter. 

            Net income from continuing operations was $1.2 million in 2017 versus a loss of $0.4 million in the
same period in 2016.  These results illustrate the positive leverage to increasing deployment of committed
capital, generating significant increase in revenue with nominal increases in operating expenses. 

            We earn our management fees on invested capital, rather than committed capital. The private debt and
real estate teams invested approximately $400 million during the year. This earned a total of $3.2 million in
acquisition and commitment fees, as well as contributing a meaningful increase in recurring, long-term man-
agement fee revenue. In the previous fiscal year IAM earned $2.5 million in acquisition and commitment fees.

            At year end, we had uninvested committed capital of $619 million for real estate, private debt and
infrastructure debt.  As these commitments are invested, they will raise recurring long-term management fee
revenue, and additional commitment and acquisition fees will be earned.

            The IAM Private Debt Group will be launching its 6th Corporate Debt Fund in fiscal 2018, plus a new
high yield fund and the IAM Real Estate Group is now able to raise new capital commitments every quarter. We
expect to maintain a level of committed but uninvested capital in excess of $500 million on an ongoing basis.

            Our balance sheet is strong and clean. As at September 30, 2017, we had net liquid assets of $15.3
million, up from $11.8 million in the prior year, and no debt. Unrealized performance fees in the real estate
funds increased to $13.0 million, up $1.6 million from $11.4 million at the end of 2016. 

             The Board of Directors of the Corporation approved payment of a regular annual dividend on its outstanding
shares of $0.06 per common share, which was paid on September 7, 2017. The Board of Directors approved
a change in dividend payment practice from annual to quarterly. The intention of the Corporation going forward
is to distribute a $0.02 quarterly dividend, to reflect the higher level of recurring management fees. This
represents a 33% increase in the total annual dividend. On November 16, 2017, the Board of Directors approved
a quarterly dividend of $0.02 on its outstanding common shares to be paid on December 20, 2017 to shareholders
of record on November 30, 2017. 

            On September 30, 2017, Rick Zagrodny, President of the IAM Real Estate Group retired after 33 years
of service. As planned, David Pappin, who joined a year previously as Chief Operating Officer of the IAM Real
Estate Group, succeeded Rick as President.  The Vice Chairs of the IAM Private Debt Group, Frank Duffy,
with 25 years of service and Don Bangay, with 16 years of service, also retired. The Corporation gratefully
acknowledges the significant contributions these three long-standing employees made over the years, thanks
them for their long and loyal service and wishes them a long and rewarding retirement.

            As our strategy unfolds, we are gratified to see it validated by steadily improving results. We look forward
to continuing growth in revenues, cash flow, earnings per share and dividends. 

John Robertson
President and CEO

Victor Koloshuk
Executive Chairman

IAM AR2017_Front_FA.qxp_Layout 1  12/8/17  2:42 PM  Page 4



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE (ESG)

5

INTEGRATED ASSET MANAGEMENT CORP.  2017 ANNUAL REPORT  

            Our Belief
As an institutional asset manager, IAM takes a long-term perspective in our duty to act in the best interests of
our clients. In this fiduciary capacity, we believe that Environmental, Social and Governance (ESG) factors
should be considered and integrated in the investment decision making process.

            Our goal remains to seek superior risk-adjusted returns for our clients in a manner that respects our
fiduciary obligations and the evolving objectives of our clients.

            We believe that consideration of ESG factors is an important element in determining whether a potential
investment, be it a loan, a property or an equity stake in a project, is attractive or not. It is our conviction that
businesses that manage ESG factors effectively will create more value over the long term.

            Investing in businesses that work actively to reduce or mitigate environmental, social and governance
risks, or encouraging businesses in which we invest to do more in terms of ESG, may help reduce the risk of
negative surprises and increase the long-term quality of our debt, real estate and infrastructure debt portfolios.

            IAM Sustainable Investment Policy
            Purpose:
The Sustainable Investment Policy outlines the principles that direct IAM’s commitment to sustainable investing
as well as offering a framework by which that commitment will be implemented. IAM will work with stakeholders
across business lines to drive long-term investment returns through the implementation of this policy.

            Definition:
            “Sustainable Investing” is defined as investing in a way that integrates ESG matters into the investment
decision-making processes, thereby enhancing long-term investment performance and respecting the objectives
of applying ESG principles.

            Scope:
            Implementing our sustainable investing approach rests with multiple investment teams within IAM as
the company offers investment strategies across asset classes. Each team is supported by the ESG Committee,
which has a responsibility for policy development and oversight of application and implementation.

            Policy:
            IAM’s policy for sustainable investing is consistent with the framework provided by the United Nations
sponsored Principles of Responsible Investing (PRI).

            There are now over 1,800 signatories  to the UN PRI, representing $68 trillion in assets. Increasingly,
institutional investors are asking about or insisting that their managers be signatories.                                  

            IAM is a signatory to:
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            Private Debt
In June of this year the IAM Private Debt Group celebrated its 30th anniversary.  We also celebrated the
retirement of our two Vice-Chairs, Don Bangay and Frank Duffy.  Both contributed significantly to the development
and growth of the business over many years.  Each of them continues to take an interest in the ongoing affairs
and activities of the Private Debt Group.

            2017 was the busiest year on record for the IAM  Private Debt Group.  Following our success in raising
over $1 billion in our fifth Corporate Debt Fund and our first Infrastructure Debt Fund, the team focused its
attention and energy on deploying those funds.  

            Our Corporate Debt Funds have a life span up to 13 years. Our first Fund, launched in 2005 with
committed capital of $600 million, is approaching maturity, with remaining AUM of $42 million. Similarly
Fund II has AUM of $107 million, Fund III has AUM of $129 million and Fund IV has AUM of $306 million,
all as at September 30, 2017. During fiscal 2017 we had $59 million in loan prepayments.

            During the year the IAM Private Debt Group approved $355 million in new loans.  The investment team
reviewed and analyzed over 100 potential investments; 18 were funded and 2 were approved and are expected
to fund in the first quarter of fiscal 2018. 

            Fund V, which raised $667 million in late 2015 is now 67% committed and invested.  Our long term
Infrastructure Debt Fund in 2016 raised $347 million of which 17% is committed and invested.  The pipeline
of potential loans is very robust and we anticipate strong deployment in both funds in fiscal 2018 as was
achieved in 2017.

            Generating and protecting return for our investors in a debt portfolio comes from anticipating and proac-
tively dealing with portfolio issues and moving quickly to resolve problems. The overall portfolio quality remains
strong and we anticipate our very low loan loss record to remain in line with historical results. Given current economic
and trade issues our team continues to monitor loans exposed to resource or commodity risks very closely.

            We are currently engaged in a portfolio wide survey with our borrowers about the impact of trade
uncertainty and their views/plans concerning same.  Proactively and cooperatively working with borrowers on
these issues is key to maintaining our exceptional loan loss record. 

            In late 2017 we launched a new higher yield fund which will make loans to non-investment grade
borrowers. This fund will continue our focus on senior secured loans and our disciplined credit practices. These
loans will tend to be to  smaller, earlier stage borrowers where we can achieve returns in the 8 – 12% range while
continuing to protect our investors’ capital. We were encouraged to pursue this sector area by strong interest
expressed by several existing institutional clients. We hope to close this fund in the first half of 2018.

            In the meantime, the IAM Private Debt Group is committed to monitoring our portfolios with the same
hands-on active management and attention to detail that has been the hallmark of our success since 1987.
We have the team and the focus to build on our results in 2017, substantially invest our current funds during
the year and launch our sixth Corporate Debt Fund in early 2018.

Philip Robson
President,

IAM Private Debt Group
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            Real Estate
At the end of September we celebrated the retirement of Rick Zagrodny, President of IAM Real Estate Group,
after 33 years of service and many significant contributions.

            Canadian real estate investment continues to attract strong interest from a broad range of capital
sources; institutional investors, insurance companies, offshore and private investors to name a few. The list is
broad and available capital remains deep. As a result, competition for investment product remains elevated
and upward pressure on valuations continues unabated.  This activity is a testament to stability and confidence
in Canadian real estate, making it a key component of investors’ portfolios.

            Despite this competitive environment, the IAM Real Estate Group had a very successful 2017.  GPM
13, a closed-end fund originally launched in June 2014, successfully completed investment of its commitments
of $135 million. 

            Responding to demand from our clients for an open-end real estate fund, GPM 13 was converted on
March 31, 2017 into an open-end fund, the first in the history of the IAM Real Estate Group and renamed the
IAM Real Property Fund. This was an important change, as it means we can now raise additional capital for the
fund on a quarterly basis and the Fund doesn’t have a maturity date.  

            The focus of the IAM Real Property Fund is on the proven strategy the IAM Real Estate Group has
followed for decades, namely, an industrial focus, diversified by tenant base and geography. This fundamental
strategy has, and will continue, to produce an investment product that delivers consistent income for a broad
range of investors.

             Since opening for the first time at the end of March, the Fund has raised $41 million in new commitments
and welcomed two new investors. Investment activity over the same period added $40 million of new assets to
the Fund. The IAM Real Property Fund held 23 assets with a value of approximately $170 million as at
September 30, 2017. 

            Activity within the three fully invested closed Funds, GPM 10 ( AUM of $85 million ), GPM 11 ( AUM
of $207 million ) and GPM 12 ( AUM of $232 million ) continues with active management across all three
portfolios. In 2017 over 150 leases were completed which represents over 1.48 million square feet of tenant
commitments. The Asset Management Team remains focused on occupancy levels and income growth within
all Funds.

            GPM 10, launched in November, 2004 reached its maturity date. As required by the Fund terms, the
assets of GPM 10 are being sold through a marketed bid process. Investors receiving maturity proceeds will have
the opportunity to continue their successful relationship with IAM by investing in the IAM Real Property Fund. 

            Looking ahead to fiscal 2018, IAM Real Estate Group’s Asset Management Team will continue its
relentless focus on occupancy and income growth. The IAM Real Property Fund will continue to expand through
new commitments, new investors and quality investments that meet the long-term goals of our investors.  

David Pappin
President,

IAM Real Estate Group
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             Overview
The management’s discussion and analysis (“MD&A”) dated December 5, 2017 presents an analysis of the financial
condition of Integrated Asset Management Corp. (“IAM” or the “Corporation”) and its subsidiaries as at September 30,
2017 compared with September 30, 2016 and the results of operations for the year ended September 30, 2017 compared
with the year ended September 30, 2016.

             This MD&A contains forward-looking statements on the Corporation’s business, strategies, opportunities and
future financial results. These statements are not promises or guarantees and are based on assumptions and estimates
that are subject to many different risks and uncertainties, any of which could cause actual results to be significantly
different from those derived from the forward-looking statements. The reader should not place undue reliance on any
such forward-looking statements, which are presented as of December 5, 2017, except where otherwise stated. For
more information on risk factors that may impact actual results, please refer to the Corporation’s most recent Annual
Information Form, which is filed on SEDAR at www.sedar.com.

             The financial statements for the year ended September 30, 2017, including required comparative information,
have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) as issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”).

             Financial results, including required comparative information, in this MD&A, unless otherwise specified herein,
are based on these financial statements. The Canadian dollar is the functional and reporting currency for the purpose of
preparing the Corporation’s financial statements.

             This MD&A includes non-IFRS financial measures which the Corporation considers shareholders, investment
analysts and other readers find helpful in understanding IAM’s financial performance. Management uses these measures
in analyzing and comparing IAM’s performance from one period to another. Nevertheless, these financial measures do
not have any standardized meaning prescribed by IFRS and may not have been calculated in the same way as similarly
named financial measures presented by other companies.

             Business Review
IAM is an alternative asset management company offering alternative asset class management to institutional, pension
and private clients. The Corporation provides investors with a range of asset classes such as real estate, private debt and
infrastructure debt. The Corporation had assets and committed capital under management (“AUM”) of approximately
$2.5 billion at September 30, 2017.

             The Corporation’s private debt and real estate products are mostly pools of assets managed by the Corporation
for investors and the life of each pool of assets can be up to thirteen years. However, the most recent private debt fund
has a twenty-five year life once fully invested and the most recent real estate fund has an indefinite life and provides for
periodic new subscriptions and redemptions. Typically, the Corporation markets for commitments from investors interested
in the asset class. The pool is then closed and the pool makes acquisitions of assets to deploy the commitments over a
number of years. For these types of pools, the Corporation receives fees only when the commitments are deployed and
assets are being managed. Generally, there is little or no liquidity for the investors during the term of a pool and the pool
can be liquidated earlier than scheduled only in exceptional circumstances.

             IAM’s board of directors established a committee comprised of two independent directors (the “Independent
Committee”) to consider potential strategic alternatives for Integrated Managed Futures Corp. (“IMFC”). Following the
Independent Committee’s review of alternatives, consideration of various stakeholders and discussions with a number of
potential buyers, the Corporation announced in January 2017 that it had agreed to sell its ownership interest in IMFC.
The purchaser is a holding company wholly-owned by Victor Koloshuk, the Executive Chairman, a director and a significant
shareholder of IAM. On March 31, 2017, the Corporation completed the sale of all its shares of IMFC.
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             Fee Revenues
The Corporation earns revenues primarily from fees from two sources:

             1. Management fees
             These are typically based on an agreed percentage of deployed AUM, which includes the market value of funds
and other assets administered by the Corporation. Revenues generated from management fees are generally expected to
change in direct proportion to the deployed amount of AUM. For income statement purposes, this revenue is recognized
when it is earned.

             2. Performance fees
             The Corporation earns performance fees, including carried interests, when investment returns outperform a
designated benchmark. These benchmarks (“hurdle rates”) are contract specific and only apply to certain investment
products. Three of the Corporation’s real estate funds provide for performance fees to be realized only towards the end
of the life of the pool of assets being managed, which at times can be up to thirteen years; accordingly performance
fees are realized sporadically. 

             Unrealized performance fees can build up over time and form a significant portion of the total unearned
revenues of the Corporation. Unrealized performance fees can also decrease or be eliminated completely over the life of
the pool of assets. The financial statements of the Corporation recognize performance fees only when realized. The
revenues and income of the Corporation will tend to fluctuate from period to period, given the timing and amounts of
each realization.

             Assets and Committed Capital Under Management
The table below shows the AUM at fair value as at the fiscal year end for the last three fiscal years.

($ MILLIONS)                                                                                                              SEPT. 30, 2017                     SEPT. 30, 2016                     SEPT. 30, 2015

Invested Capital
Private Debt                                                                     $       1,002.9        $           801.3        $           836.4
Real Estate                                                                                  851.4                     790.8                     679.6

Total Invested Capital                                                                   1,854.3                  1,592.1                  1,516.0
Committed Capital to be Invested
Private Debt                                                                                  591.6                     946.5                         4.0
Real Estate                                                                                    27.6                       18.1                     116.9

Total Committed Capital to be Invested                                             619.2                     964.6                     120.9

Total AUM                                                                     $       2,473.5        $       2,556.7        $       1,636.9

             The AUM shown for both September 30, 2016 and September 30, 2015 exclude the AUM of IMFC because
the Corporation sold all its ownership interest in March 2017.

             In aggregate, AUM was approximately $2.5 billion as at September 30, 2017, down approximately $83 million
from the prior year end.

             AUM in IAM Private Debt decreased approximately $153 million in fiscal 2017. During the year IAM Private
Debt deployed invested capital of approximately $355 million increasing future management fees, as fees are earned on
assets deployed. The decrease in total AUM was the result of distributions to investors of routine principal repayments
received on loans in pre-existing private debt funds and early prepayment on a loan.

             AUM in IAM Real Estate increased approximately $70 million in fiscal 2017. The net increase primarily
represents the raising of approximately $41 million in the open fund during 2017. The remainder of the increase is the
appreciation of existing assets under management net of the disposal of some assets during the normal course of business.
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             Selected Annual Information
In fiscal 2013, the Corporation sold its wholly-owned subsidiary, BluMont Capital, and in the current fiscal year the
Corporation sold its subsidiary IMFC. The financial statements of the Corporation for the three fiscal years 2015 to 2017
include the operating results of BluMont Capital and IMFC but they are separated and classified as “discontinued
operations”; the remaining operations of IAM are classified as “continuing operations”. For example, “Total revenues”
shown below exclude the revenues of BluMont Capital and IMFC in the three years.

$000'S EXCEPT PER SHARE AMOUNTS                                                                                                 2017                                     2016                                     2015

Revenues before the undernoted                                         $         14,216        $         11,904        $         11,825
Performance fees                                                                                    -                             -                        108
Investment (loss) gain                                                                       (559)                      (532)                    1,133

Total revenues                                                                    $         13,657        $         11,372        $         13,066

Net performance fees (1)                                                      $                   -        $                   -        $                81

Adjusted earnings before interest, taxes depreciation 
      and amortization (“Adjusted EBITDA”) (2)                      $           1,856        $            (221)       $           1,657
Net income (loss) from continuing operations                       $           1,174        $            (366)       $              489
Net gain on sale of discontinued operations                         $              699        $              401        $              190
Net income (loss) from discontinued operations                   $               (69)       $              104        $              512
Net income (loss) attributed to:
      Common shareholders                                                 $           1,808        $              119        $           1,132
      Non-controlling interest                                               $                 (4)       $                20        $                59

                                                                          $           1,804        $              139        $           1,191

Basic and diluted earnings per share
      From continuing operations                                          $             0.04        $           (0.02)       $             0.02
      From discontinued operations                                      $             0.02        $             0.02        $             0.02
      From net income                                                         $             0.06        $             0.00        $             0.04

Dividends per share                                                            $             0.06        $             0.06        $             0.06
Summary consolidated balance sheets
Total assets                                                                     $         23,173        $         22,669        $         23,168
Total liabilities                                                                   $           4,913        $           5,101        $           4,684
Shareholders’ equity (3)                                                        $         18,260        $         17,568        $         18,484

                  (1) Net performance fees is a non-IFRS financial measure used by the Corporation. This measure is calculated as performance fee revenue less
                        expenses incurred relating to performance fees revenue earned.

                  (2) Adjusted EBITDA is a non-IFRS financial measure used by the Corporation. This measure is calculated as earnings before the deduction of
                       interest expense, income taxes, depreciation and amortization, and stock-based compensation.

                  (3) Shareholders’ equity, prepared in accordance with IFRS, includes certain non-controlling interest.

             Revenues before performance fees and investment gain (loss) of $14.2 million in fiscal 2017 were up $2.3
million from $11.9 million in fiscal 2016. Management and commitment fees in IAM Private Debt increased $2.5 million
due to higher AUM deployed and commitments during the year.

             Investment losses of $0.6 million in fiscal 2017 and in fiscal 2016 investment losses of $0.5 million, were
primarily from investments that have been fully redeemed and relate to discontinued subsidiaries.

             Adjusted EBITDA increased from ($0.2 million) in fiscal 2016 to $1.9 million in fiscal 2017. A significant
portion of this increase resulted from increased management, acquisition and commitment fees.

             The Corporation recorded net income (loss) from continuing operations of $1.2 million in fiscal 2017 compared
with ($0.4 million) in fiscal 2016. The reconciliation of Adjusted EBITDA to net income is shown as follows.
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             Discontinued operations in the year ended September 30, 2017 is represented by $699,092 gain on the sale
of IMFC net of income taxes and ($69,088) representing the operating losses of IMFC for the period from October 1,
2016 to the completion of the sale in March 2017.

             The Corporation received cash proceeds of $1.0 million in respect of the sale.

             In fiscal 2014, the Corporation completed the sale of its wholly-owned subsidiary, BluMont Capital Corporation
(“BluMont Capital”). In the quarter ended December 31, 2015, the Corporation recognized consideration of $395,308
in respect of the Corporation’s share of performance fees realized by the purchaser of BluMont Capital and recorded a
gain from discontinued operations, net of related income tax adjustments, of $401,294. This payment of performance
fees by the purchaser represents the final contingent portion of the sale agreement.

             The net income of the Corporation, as reported in the statements of income, is attributed to (i) shareholders of
the Corporation and (ii) non-controlling interest. The non-controlling interest represents equity interest in a subsidiary.

             In each of fiscal 2016 and 2017, the Board of Directors of the Corporation approved the payment of a regular
annual cash dividend of $0.06 per common share. These dividends have been designated as eligible dividends by the
Corporation in accordance with Canada Revenue Agency guidelines.

             Financial Statements
The accompanying audited consolidated financial statements included in this annual report comprise the results for the
years ended September 30, 2017 and September 30, 2016.

             Summary of Consolidated Financial Results

             Operating Results

             Net Income (loss) and Earnings per Share
Net income (loss) from continuing operations for the year ended September 30, 2017 was $1.2 million compared with ($0.4
million) in fiscal 2016. Earnings per share from continuing operations was $0.04, up from ($0.02) from the prior year.

             Reconciliation of Adjusted EBITDA to Net Income and Comprehensive Income

($000's)                                                                                                                                                                           2017                                     2016

Adjusted earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation
      and amortization (“Adjusted EBITDA”)                                                        $           1,856        $            (221)
Amortization                                                                                                                    (51)                        (58)
Interest expense                                                                                                                (37)                        (36)
Stock-based compensation                                                                                                 (82)                      (138)
Income (taxes) recovery                                                                                                    (512)                         87

Income (loss) from continuing operations, net of income taxes                             $           1,174        $            (366)
Gain on sale of discontinued operations, net of income taxes                                               699                        401
Net Income (loss) from discontinued operations, net of income taxes                                    (69)                       104

Net income and comprehensive income for the year                                            $           1,804        $              139

Net income (loss) attributed to:
      Common shareholders of the Corporation                                                     $           1,808        $              119
      Non-controlling interest                                                                                                 (4)                         20

                                                                                                        $           1,804        $              139
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             Revenues
Total revenues in fiscal 2017 were up from fiscal 2016 at $13.7 million and $11.4 million respectively, however there
were significant differences in each component of revenue. 

             Management fees and other income were $14.2 million in fiscal 2017, up $2.3 million from $11.9 million in
fiscal 2016. IAM Private Debt and IAM Real Estate invested $386.8 million during the 2017 fiscal year earning $3.2
million in acquisition and commitment fees, thus raising recurring, long-term management fee revenue. In the comparable
fiscal year of 2016, the Corporation earned $2.5 million in acquisition and commitment fees. Other income was higher
in the current year due to interest accrued on loan receivables and investment income.

             Expenses
The Corporation reported consolidated expenses for the year ended September 30, 2017 of $12.2 million compared to
$12.0 million for the year ended September 30, 2016. Expenses increased by $0.2 million primarily due to an increase
in employee bonuses, long-term incentive bonus obligation, and other compensation items, as a result of increased profits.

             The principal components of expenses are selling, general and administration (“SG&A”) of $12.0 million (2016
– $11.8 million), approximately 82% of which are salaries and related costs (2016 – 78%).

             The current and future income tax assets and liabilities are recorded on the consolidated balance sheet based
on legislated future income tax rates, interpretation of tax legislation and assumptions about the realization and timing
of future benefits and costs. Income tax rates can be changed through legislation at any time and a small change in rates
or in interpretation or timing could result in a significant change in the income taxes shown on the consolidated statements
of income.

             Discontinued Operations
The gain on the sale and the loss from discontinued operations (BluMont Capital and IMFC) for fiscal 2016 and fiscal
2017 is shown in detail in note 3 to the financial statements.
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             Quarterly Summary
Revenues and Adjusted EBITDA vary considerably from quarter to quarter depending on the amount of assets deployed
by IAM Real Estate and IAM Private Debt.

             Investment losses were $0.6 million in fiscal 2017 compared to investment losses of $0.5 million in fiscal
2016, the majority of which were from investments that have been fully redeemed and relate to discontinued subsidiaries.
Adjusted EBITDA from continuing operations in Q2 and Q3 was positively impacted by IAM Private Debt and IAM Real
Estate deployments of investments.

             Fiscal 2017

$000'S, EXCEPT PER SHARE AMOUNTS AND AUM Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 TOTAL

Revenues before performance fees $ 2,290 $ 3,997 $ 4,128 $ 3,242 $ 13,657
Performance fees     - - - - -
Total revenues (continuing operations) $ 2,290 $ 3,997 $ 4,128 $ 3,242 $ 13,657
Net performance fees (continuing operations) $ - $ - $ - $ - $ -
Adjusted EBITDA (continuing operations) $ 81 $ 891 $ 809 $ 75 $ 1,856
Net income (loss) from continuing operations (1) $ (18) $ 508 $ 555 $ 133 $ 1,178
Net income (loss) from discontinued operations $ (8) $ 638 $ - $ - $ 630
Net income (loss) and comprehensive

income (loss) (1) $ (26) $ 1,146 $ 555 $ 133 $ 1,808
Earnings per share (1)

Basic and diluted
      (continuing operations) $ (0.00) $ 0.02 $ 0.02 $ 0.00 $ 0.04
Basic and diluted
      (discontinued operations) $ (0.00) $ 0.02 $ - $ - $ 0.02

AUM ($ millions)      $ 2,525 $ 2,514 $ 2,505 $ 2,474

             Fiscal 2016

$000'S, EXCEPT PER SHARE AMOUNTS AND AUM Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 TOTAL

Revenues before performance fees $ 2,560 $ 2,520 $ 2,880 $ 3,412 $ 11,372
Performance fees     - - - - -
Total revenues (continuing operations) $ 2,560 $ 2,520 $ 2,880 $ 3,412 $ 11,372
Net performance fees (continuing operations) $ - $ - $ - $ - $ -
Adjusted EBITDA (continuing operations) $ (627) $ (171) $ 308 $ 269 $ (221)
Net income (loss) from continuing operations (1) $ (604) $ (64) $ 247 $ 35 $ (386)
Net income (loss) from discontinued operations $ 756 $ (91) $ (38) $ (122) $ 505
Net income (loss) and comprehensive

income (loss) (1) $ 152 $ (155) $ 209 $ (87) $ 119
Earnings per share (1)

Basic and diluted
      (continuing operations) $ (0.02) $ (0.01) $ 0.01 $ 0.00 $ (0.02)
Basic and diluted
      (discontinued operations) $ 0.03 $ (0.00) $ (0.00) $ (0.01) $ 0.02

AUM ($ millions)      $ 2,318 $ 2,319 $ 2,287 $ 2,557

                  (1) Attributed to the common shareholders of the Corporation

             The financial data provided was prepared in accordance with the same accounting principles for all eight quarters
and the fiscal years encompassing those quarters.
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             Consolidated Financial Position at September 30, 2017

             Estimate of unrealized performance fees
Unrealized performance fees can build up over time and are important to the Corporation. Unrealized performance fees
are not reflected in the consolidated financial statements and will only be reflected when realized. These unrealized
performance fees are subject to the deduction of third party and corporate expenses, including non-controlling interest.

($ 000's)                                                                                                                                                                                                         SEPT. 30, 2017

Real Estate                                                                                                                                  $         13,014

             IAM manages investment products in which significant amounts of unrealized performance fees have built up
because the performance to date has exceeded the applicable benchmarks. However, the excess returns have not yet
been monetized.

             Performance fees in the real estate funds are realized sporadically as they tend to be recognized towards the
end of the life of the pool of assets being managed, which at times can be up to thirteen years.

             Unrealized performance fees ($ 000’s)

REAL ESTATE FISCAL YEAR OF
FUNDS EXPECTED REALIZATION 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017

Fund 9 (1) 2014  $ 3,091 $ - $ - $ - $ -
Fund 10 2018  372 534 268 694 1,350
Fund 11 2021  5,733 7,504 7,912 7,862 8,200
Fund 12 2024  1,290 2,013 2,471 2,840 3,464

Total           $ 10,486 $ 10,051 $ 10,651 $ 11,396 $ 13,014

                  (1) The Corporation realized $3.7 million of performance fees in fiscal years 2014 and 2015 in respect to Fund 9 closing.

             Any estimate of unrealized performance fees is subject to significant change due to the volatile nature of the real
estate market. Accordingly, the estimate of unrealized performance fees shown could be substantially over or understated.

             The unrealized performance fees of the real estate funds increased $1.6 million to $13.0 million in fiscal 2017.
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             Liquidity and capital resources
The Corporation’s primary liquidity requirement is to generate sufficient cash flow to meet its operating obligations on a
continuous basis.

             Cash flow from operations (1) and dividends in fiscal years 2017 and 2016 are summarized below.

$000'S EXCEPT PER SHARE AMOUNTS                                                                                                                                              2017                                     2016

Cash flow from (used in) operations (1)                                                                 $           1,561        $            (302)
Dividends declared                                                                                           $           1,685        $           1,612
Cash flow from (used in) operations per share (2)                                                  $             0.06        $           (0.01)
Dividends per share                                                                                          $             0.06        $             0.06

                  (1) These amounts are shown on the consolidated statements of cash flows in the financial statements under “Cash provided by operating activities
                        before changes in operating assets and liabilities” and are in respect of continuing operations.

                  (2) Calculated by dividing cash flow from operations by the weighted average number of shares outstanding in the fiscal year.

             Cash flow from (used in) continuing operations (1) was $1.6 million in fiscal 2017 which does not include the
investment loss of $0.6 million.

             The Corporation’s net liquid assets (current assets less current liabilities) increased $3.5 million during the year
from $11.8 million as at September 30, 2016 to $15.3 million as at September 30, 2017. The Corporation received cash
payments of $2.1 million on the outstanding loan receivable of $3.6 million to an investee company which is a borrower
in a fund managed by IAM Private Debt. Proceeds from the sale of proprietary investments, primarily related to discontinued
subsidiary, was $2.2 million. The Corporation received cash proceeds of $1.0 million in respect of the sale of IMFC.

             On August 3, 2017 the Corporation’s board of directors approved payment of the annual cash dividend in the
amount of $0.06 per share or $1.7 million in aggregate. Since the Corporation began declaring dividends in fiscal 2005,
IAM has declared and paid cash dividends totaling $0.71 per share.

             The board of directors of the Corporation on August 3, 2017 announced a change in dividend payment practice
from annual to quarterly. The declaration and payment of future dividends is subject to approval by the Corporation’s
board of directors. There can be no assurance that the Corporation’s board of directors will declare future dividends.

             On November 16, 2017, the Corporation’s board of directors approved payment of the first quarterly cash dividend
in the amount of $0.02 per outstanding share, approximately $0.6 million based on the number of shares outstanding at
that date. This dividend will be paid on December 20, 2017 to shareholders of record on November 30, 2017.

             At September 30, 2017 the Corporation had 28.1 million common shares outstanding (September 30, 2016
- 27.4 million) representing capital stock of $19.8 million (September 30, 2016 - $19.3 million). At December 5, 2017
the Corporation had 28.1 million common shares outstanding.
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             Liquidity and capital resources (continued)
             On May 11, 2017, the Corporation announced its intention to renew its Normal Course Issuer Bid (“NCIB”) in
which the Corporation is permitted to purchase, for cancellation, up to 1,397,715 common shares of the Corporation at
prevailing market prices during the 12 month period commencing May 24, 2017 and ending May 23, 2018.

             A copy of IAM’s notice of the NCIB which was filed with the Toronto Stock Exchange may be obtained by any
shareholder, without charge by contacting IAM.

             During fiscal 2017, the Corporation acquired no common shares under the NCIB (fiscal 2016 – acquired no
common shares).

             The Corporation has agreed to make certain long-term incentive bonus payments to take effect on September
30, 2018 to an executive officer of the Corporation. In aggregate these payments could total up to $2.5 million payable
over a five year period. The Corporation expects to fund this obligation out of cash flow in the fiscal years in which the
obligation becomes due. For additional information, see note 18 (“Related Party Transactions”) in the financial statements.

             Related Party Transactions
During the fiscal year 2017 the Corporation and Koloshuk Farrugia Corp.; a holding company wholly-owned by Victor
Koloshuk, the Executive Chairman, a director and a significant shareholder of IAM, entered into an agreement for the
Corporation to sell its common shares of IMFC and its units of the AlphaCentric/IMFC Managed Futures Strategy Fund
as is explained in detail in notes 3 and 5 of the financial statements. There were no material related party transactions
other than those described in the 2017 Annual Report and the Management Information Circular of the Corporation.

             Managing Risk
There is risk inherent in the asset management industry. Risk factors related to the Corporation include

             •  Poor investment performance
             •  Loss of key employees
             •  Lack of client diversification
             •  Lack of product diversification
             •  Competitive pressures
             •  Litigation risks

             These risks are described in greater detail in the Corporation’s Annual Information Form. These risk factors are
mitigated to the extent possible and practical by management through its day-to-day activities.
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             Significant Accounting Policies and Estimates
The annual consolidated financial statements for fiscal 2017 have been prepared in accordance with IFRS. For a summary
of the significant accounting policies used in preparing the financial statements, please refer to Note 2 of the notes to
the financial statements. Included in Note 2 is a summary of significant judgements and estimates which, in the view of
management, could have a material impact on the financial statements. These judgements and estimates cover revenue
recognition, provisions, fair value of financial assets and other items.

             Disclosure Controls and Procedures and Internal Controls over Financial Reporting
The Corporation maintains a set of disclosure controls and procedures (“DC&P”) and internal controls over financial
reporting (“ICFR”). The DC&P have been designed to provide reasonable assurance that material information relating to
the Corporation is made known to the Corporation’s Chief Executive Officer (“CEO”) and Chief Financial Officer (“CFO”)
by the other officers of the Corporation, particularly during the period in which the annual filings are being prepared; and
information required to be disclosed by the Corporation in its annual filings, interim filings or other reports filed or
submitted by it under securities legislation is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods
specified in securities legislation. The ICFR has been designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability
of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with IFRS.

             Consistent with National Instrument 52-109, the CEO and CFO have caused the DC&P and ICFR to be designed
under their supervision. Management, under direction of the CEO and CFO, has concluded that the ICFR are effective.
Management has evaluated, with the participation of the CEO and CFO, the effectiveness of the DC&P as at September
30, 2017. As a result of this, the CEO and CFO have concluded that they are reasonably assured the DC&P were effective
and that material information relating to IAM was made known to them within the time periods specified under applicable
securities legislation. For the year ended September 30, 2017, there have been no changes to ICFR that have materially
affected, or are reasonably likely to affect, internal controls over financial reporting.

             Other Information
Additional information about the Corporation, including its most recent Annual Information Form and Management
Information Circular, is available on the System for Electronic Document Analysis and Retrieval (“SEDAR”) at
www.sedar.com.
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The Corporation’s management is responsible for the integrity, objectivity, reliability and fairness of presentation of the
accompanying consolidated financial statements and all information in this Annual Report. The consolidated financial
statements and Management’s Discussion and Analysis have been approved by the Board of Directors. The consolidated
financial statements have been prepared by management, in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
(“IFRS”) and where appropriate reflect management’s judgement and best estimates. Preparation of financial statements
necessarily requires inclusion of amounts which have been based on management’s best estimates, which have been
made using careful judgement. Financial information contained elsewhere in this Annual Report is consistent with the
consolidated financial statements.

             The Corporation’s management is responsible for maintaining systems of internal accounting and administrative
controls that provide reasonable assurance that assets are safeguarded from loss or unauthorized use and produce reliable
accounting records for the preparation of financial information. Such systems are designed to meet the management
needs of a growing business and to provide assurance that financial information is accurate and reliable in all material
respects, consistent with reasonable costs. The Corporation’s management believes that such systems are operating
effectively and that the systems of internal controls meet management’s responsibilities for the integrity of the consolidated
financial statements.

             The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors, all of whom are independent directors, meets with management
and the auditors to discuss the Corporation’s financial reporting and internal control. The Committee meets at least
quarterly with management to satisfy itself that management is properly discharging their responsibilities. The Committee,
among other things, reviews financial matters related to Corporate Governance, the quality of audits and financial reporting
and maintains practices intended to preserve the independence of the external auditors including a review of their
independence. The Audit Committee reviews the consolidated financial statements, the independent auditor’s report and
the annual and quarterly reports to the shareholders prior to submitting the information to the Board of Directors for
approval. Both the independent auditor and the Audit Committee have the right to request a meeting in the absence of
management at any time.

             Management recognizes its responsibility to conduct the Corporation’s affairs in the best interest of its shareholders.

John Robertson 
Chief Executive Officer 

Tom Felkai
Chief Financial Officer
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To the Shareholders of Integrated Asset Management Corp.
We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Integrated Asset Management Corp., which comprise
the consolidated balance sheets as at September 30, 2017 and September 30, 2016 and the consolidated statements
of income and comprehensive income, changes in shareholders’ equity, and cash flows for the years then ended, and the
related notes, which comprise a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management’s responsibility for the consolidated financial statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

Auditor’s responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits. We conducted
our audits in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards require that we comply
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks
of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appro-
priateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well
as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained in our audits is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion.

Opinion
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of
Integrated Asset Management Corp. as at September 30, 2017 and September 30, 2016 and its financial performance
and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards.

Chartered Professional Accountants, Licensed Public Accountants                                                                             
Toronto, Ontario

December 7, 2017
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                                                                                                                                     NOTES            SEPTEMBER 30, 2017           SEPTEMBER 30, 2016

Assets
Current
      Cash and cash equivalents                                                                         $ 16,480,012        $ 10,327,303
      Restricted cash equivalents                                                     (Note 4)                            -                 802,827
      Receivables                                                                                                        465,359                 735,847
      Income taxes recoverable                                                                                    179,363                 140,118
      Prepaids                                                                                                            172,583                 200,690
      Investments in funds managed by the Corporation                    (Note 5)                            -              3,899,326
      Loan Receivable and Other assets                                            (Note 6)             1,840,766                   92,535

Total current assets                                                                                               19,138,083            16,198,646

Property and equipment                                                                 (Note 7)                  91,019                 121,376
Goodwill and Intangible assets                                                       (Note 8)             1,638,853              1,667,956
Investments in funds managed by the Corporation                           (Note 5)             1,259,908                 198,389
Loan Receivable and Other assets                                                  (Note 6)                  45,038              3,610,038
Deferred income taxes                                                                 (Note 13)                999,787                 872,582

                                                                                                        $ 23,172,688        $ 22,668,987

Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity
Current
      Payables and accruals                                                                                $   3,321,271        $   2,410,315
      Deposits                                                                                                              25,000                 125,000
      Tenant inducements                                                                                              76,622                   91,947
      Income taxes payable                                                                                          434,085                 412,593
      Interest of third parties in investments in funds
      managed by the Corporation                                            (Note 5)                            -              1,416,677

Total current liabilities                                                                                            3,856,978              4,456,532

Tenant inducements                                                                                                               -                   76,622
Long-term incentive bonus obligation                                           (Note 18)             1,050,664                 559,000
Deferred income taxes                                                                 (Note 13)                    5,393                     9,121

Total liabilities                                                                                                       4,913,035              5,101,275

Shareholders’ Equity                                                                     (Note 9)
Capital stock                                                                                                       19,805,724            19,315,633
Contributed surplus                                                                                                1,332,573              1,250,872
Deficit                                                                                                        (2,878,686)           (3,003,278)
Non-controlling interest                                                                                                       42                     4,485

Total shareholders’ equity                                                                                      18,259,653            17,567,712

                                                                                                        $ 23,172,688        $ 22,668,987

                  See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.
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FOR THE YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30                                                                                            NOTES                                     2017                                     2016

Revenues
Management, commitment and acquisition fees                                                  $ 13,613,881        $ 11,635,868
Investment loss                                                                           (Note 11)               (559,316)               (531,812)
Interest and other income                                                                                          602,089                 268,751

                                                                                                            13,656,654            11,372,807

      
Expenses
Selling, general and administration                                              (Note 12)           12,003,707            11,814,990
Stock-based compensation                                                             (Note 9)                  81,701                 137,943
Amortization of property and equipment                                          (Note 7)                  24,755                   27,242
Amortization of intangible assets                                                    (Note 8)                  25,879                   30,431
Interest expense                                                                                                          36,745                   35,536

Total expenses                                                                                                      12,172,787            12,046,142

Interest of third parties in investment loss                                     (Note 11)               (202,706)               (220,849)

Income (loss) before income taxes                                                                           1,686,573                (452,486)

Income taxes (recovery)                                                               (Note 13)
      Current                                                                                                           614,513                 355,607
      Deferred                                                                                                           (102,843)               (442,200)

                                                                                                                 511,670                  (86,593)

Income (loss) from continuing operations                                                                 1,174,903                (365,893)
Net gain from discontinued operations, net of income taxes             (Note 3)                630,004                 505,616

Net income and comprehensive income (1)                                                           $   1,804,907        $      139,723

Net income (loss) attributed to:
      Common shareholders of the Corporation                                                     $   1,809,350        $      119,236
      Non-controlling interest                                                                                         (4,443)                  20,487

                                                                                                        $   1,804,907        $      139,723

Earnings per share attributed to the common shareholders
      of the Corporation
Basic and diluted earnings per share                                              (Note 9)

      Continuing operations                                                                                $             0.04        $           (0.02)

      Discontinued operations                                                                             $             0.02        $             0.02

                                                                                                        $             0.06        $             0.00

                  (1) The Corporation had no Other Comprehensive Income for the years ended September 30, 2017 or 2016.

                  See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME AND COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
(IN CANADIAN $) 
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                                                                                  NUMBER OF                                                                                              RETAINED                            NON-

                                                                                        SHARES                        CAPITAL              CONTRIBUTED                    EARNINGS              CONTROLLING                           TOTAL

                                                                              OUTSTANDING                          STOCK                     SURPLUS                       (DEFICIT)                    INTEREST                         EQUITY

                                                                                                                                       $                                  $                                   $                                  $                                  $

At October 1, 2016                               27,384,295      19,315,633        1,250,872       (3,003,278)              4,485      17,567,712
Stock-based compensation (1)                                   -                       -             81,701                       -                       -             81,701
Net income and comprehensive income                    -                       -                       -        1,809,350              (4,443)       1,804,907
Regular dividend (Note 10)                                     -                       -                       -       (1,684,758)                      -       (1,684,758)
Issuance of common shares on
      exercise of stock options                       695,000           486,500                       -                       -                       -           486,500
Issuance of common shares
      through key employee share
      loan plan (1) (Note 9)                               83,332               3,591                       -                       -                       -               3,591

Balance, September 30, 2017                28,162,627      19,805,724        1,332,573       (2,878,686)                   42      18,259,653

At October 1, 2015                               26,327,010      18,843,043        1,112,929       (1,510,518)            38,292      18,483,746
Stock-based compensation (1)                                   -                       -           137,943                       -                 -                 137,943
Net income and comprehensive income                    -                       -                       -           119,236             20,487           139,723
Distributions paid to
      noncontrolling interest                                     -                       -                       -                       -            (54,294)           (54,294)
Regular dividend (Note 10)                                     -                       -                       -       (1,611,996)                      -       (1,611,996)
Issuance of common shares on
      exercise of stock options                       230,000           163,000                       -                       -                       -           163,000
Issuance of common shares
      through employee share
      purchase plan                                      309,590           309,590                       -                       -                       -           309,590
Issuance of common shares
      through key employee share
      loan plan (1) (Note 9)                             517,695                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -

Balance, September 30, 2016                27,384,295      19,315,633        1,250,872       (3,003,278)              4,485      17,567,712

                  (1) Due to the non-recourse nature of the loans they are treated for accounting purposes as stock based compensation, the value related to the loans is $19,137 (2016 -
                       $74,895) which is included in contributed surplus. The value included in capital stock is the portion of loans that have been repaid in the current fiscal year $3,591
                       (2016 - $nil), the shares issued remain pledged until the full loan has been repaid by the employee.

                  See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.
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FOR THE YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30                                                                                            NOTES                                     2017                                     2016

Operating activities
Net income (loss) from continuing operations                                                     $   1,174,903        $     (365,893)
Add (subtract) non-cash items:
Stock-based compensation                                                                                           81,701                 137,943
Amortization of property and equipment                                                                        24,755                   27,242
Amortization of intangible assets                                                                                  25,879                   30,431
Deferred income taxes recovery                                                                                 (102,843)               (442,200)
Investment loss                                                                           (Note 11)                559,316                 531,812
Interest of third parties in investment loss                                                                  (202,706)               (220,849)

Cash provided by (used in) operating activities before
      changes in operating assets and liabilities                                                         1,561,005                (301,514)
Net change in non-cash balances relating to operations                                             1,549,698                (203,624)
Interest received                                                                                                        454,805                 176,215
Interest paid                                                                                                             (36,745)                 (35,536)
Income taxes paid                                                                                                    (797,684)               (212,118)

Cash provided by (used in) continuing operating activities                                         2,731,079                (576,577)

Cash provided by (used in) discontinued operating activities                                        (129,582)                590,870

Cash provided by operating activities                                                                       2,601,497                   14,293

Investing activities
Proceeds from sale of subsidiary                                                    (Note 3)             1,000,000                             -
Cash included in assets of subsidiary sold                                       (Note 3)               (133,569)                            -
Investments in funds managed by the Corporation                                                   (1,123,418)               (202,439)
Restricted cash equivalents                                                                                        802,827                (802,827)
Proceeds from sale of investments in funds
      managed by the Corporation                                                                             2,187,938                 374,082
Purchase of property and equipment                                                                              (2,584)                 (79,638)
Issuance of loan receivable                                                                                                     -             (3,600,000)
Repayment of loan receivable                                                                                  2,014,685                             -

Cash provided by (used in) continuing investing activities                                          4,745,879             (4,310,822)

Cash provided by discontinued investing activities                                                                   -                 125,089

Cash provided by (used in) investing activities                                                          4,745,879             (4,185,733)

Financing activities
Dividends paid to shareholders                                                     (Note 10)            (1,684,758)           (1,611,996)
Distributions paid to non-controlling interest                                                                           -                  (54,294)
Issuance of common shares on exercise of stock options                                              486,500                 163,000
Issuance of common shares through employee share
      purchase plan                                                                                                                 -                 309,590
Issuance of common shares through repayment of key
      employee share loan plan                                                                                        3,591                             -

Cash used in continuing financing activities                                                           (1,194,667)           (1,193,700)

Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents                                                     6,152,709             (5,365,140)
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year                                                         10,327,303            15,692,443

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year                                                              $ 16,480,012        $ 10,327,303

                  See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.
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             1. Organization and Nature of Business
Integrated Asset Management Corp. (the "Corporation" or "IAM") is incorporated under the laws of the province of Ontario
and its common shares are listed on the Toronto Stock Exchange (TSX) under the symbol IAM. Its registered office is at
70 University Avenue, Suite 1200, Toronto, Ontario. The Corporation’s principal business is alternative asset management
and it operates in one geographic segment (Canada).

             The Corporation manages assets across a variety of alternative asset classes for institutional, pension and
private clients. Substantially all of the Corporation’s revenues and cash flows are derived from managing and administering
this business.

             2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

             Statement of compliance
These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
(“IFRS”), as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”).

             The consolidated financial statements of the Corporation for the year ended September 30, 2017 were authorized
for issuance by the Board of Directors of IAM on December 5, 2017.

             Basis of presentation
The consolidated financial statements of IAM have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for certain financial
instruments which have been measured at fair value.

             Principles of consolidation
The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Corporation and the following material subsidiaries,
all of which have their principal place of business in Ontario:

             GPM Investment Management (“GPM”) (a partnership) 100% (a)

             IAM Private Debt Group Corp. (“Private Debt Group”) 100%
             Integrated Managed Futures Corp. (“IMFC”) 77.5% (b)

             Integrated Partners Holding GP One Limited (“IPHGPOL”) 57.8% (c)

                  (a) In fiscal 2009, the Corporation acquired the remaining 25.025% of GPM that it did not already own. The vendor retained his 25.025%
                        pro-rata economic interest in performance fees that may be realized by GPM from one specific fund in the future.

                  (b) In March 2017, the Corporation sold all its ownership in IMFC. (Note 3)

                  (c) In fiscal 2016, the Corporation wound up this subsidiary with the final liquidation of the underlying fund’s remaining investment.

              The consolidated financial statements include all the assets, liabilities and operations of a fund managed by the
Corporation for the period in which the Corporation had a controlling interest in the fund. At September 30, 2017, the
Corporation no longer had controlling interest in the AlphaCentric/IMFC Managed Futures Strategy Fund (formerly Attain
IMFC Macro Fund). The Corporation does not have any contractual arrangements that could require it to provide financial
support, nor did it provide such support, to this consolidated structured entity. Interest of third parties in investments in
funds managed by the Corporation represents the share of AlphaCentric/IMFC Managed Futures Strategy Fund owned by
outside parties; it is presented as a component of liabilities and any changes in fair value are included in the consolidated
statements of income and comprehensive income. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which control is
obtained by the Corporation and are de-consolidated from the date that control ceases. Intercompany transactions,
balances, income, expenses and profit and losses are eliminated. Non-controlling interest represents equity interest in
a subsidiary; the share of net assets which are attributable to non-controlling interest which is presented as a component
of equity. Its share of net income and comprehensive income is recognized directly in equity, if characterized as non-
controlling interest. Changes in IAM’s ownership interests in subsidiaries that do not result in a loss of control are accounted
for as equity transactions.
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              The Corporation applies the acquisition method to account for business combinations. The consideration trans-
ferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair value of (i) the assets transferred, (ii) the liabilities incurred to the
former owners of the acquiree and (iii) the equity interest issued by the Corporation. The consideration transferred includes
the fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement. Identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination are measured initially at their fair values at
the acquisition date. The Corporation recognizes any non-controlling interest in the acquiree on an acquisition-by-acquisition
basis, either at fair value or at the non-controlling interest’s proportionate share of the recognized amounts of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets.

              When a change in the Corporation’s ownership interest in a subsidiary results in a loss of control over the subsidiary,
the assets and liabilities of the subsidiary are derecognized at the date control ceases. The operating performance of the
subsidiary for the period up to when control ceased is reclassified to discontinued operations on the consolidated statements
of income and comprehensive income.

             Revenue recognition
Management, commitment and acquisition fees are primarily based on an agreed percentage of deployed assets under
management, which includes the market value of funds and other assets administered by the Corporation. Management,
commitment and acquisition fees are recognized on an accrual basis. Performance fees are earned when investment returns
of a fund outperform a designated benchmark and are recognized when management is assured of their realization. The
Corporation owns investments in funds managed by the Corporation and has owned a forward currency contract and recognizes
the change in fair value on the consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income as Investment Gain (Loss).

             Foreign currency translation
The Corporation’s consolidated financial statements are presented in Canadian dollars; the functional currency of the
Corporation and each of its subsidiaries. Assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are converted to Canadian
dollars at the rate of exchange at each balance sheet date. Purchases and sales of assets and liabilities and investment
income denominated in foreign currencies are converted into Canadian dollars at the rate of exchange at the date of
transaction. Realized and unrealized gains (losses) on assets, liabilities and income denominated in foreign currencies
are included in the statement of income.

             Cash, cash equivalents, and restricted cash equivalents
Cash consists of cash on deposit with banks. Cash equivalents consist of highly liquid investments. Restricted cash
equivalents were cash equivalents held in connection with a foreign currency contract held by the Corporation.

             Financial Instruments
All financial instruments are measured at fair value on initial recognition. Transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition or issue of a financial instrument classified as other than at fair value through profit or loss are added
to the carrying amount of the asset or liability. 

              At each reporting date, the Corporation assesses whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset (other
than a financial asset classified as fair value through profit and loss) is impaired. If such evidence exists, the Corporation
recognizes an impairment loss. The loss is the difference between the amortized cost of the loan or receivable and present
value of the estimated future cash flows, discounted using the instrument’s original effective interest rate. The carrying
amount of the asset is reduced by this amount either directly or indirectly through the use of an allowance account.

              Impairment losses on financial assets carried at amortized cost are reversed in subsequent periods if the amount
of the loss decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognized.

             The Corporation’s financial instruments consist of cash and cash equivalents, restricted cash equivalents,
receivables, investments in funds managed by the Corporation, management loans, loan receivable, accounts payable, and
accrued liabilities. Investments in funds managed by the Corporation are recorded at fair value. Investments which are
not publicly traded or other assets for which no public market exists are valued at fair value. The fair value of these
investments is determined using an appropriate valuation methodology and use of observable data and/or unobservable
data, as determined appropriate by management. Accounts receivable, accounts payable and accrued liabilities are classified
as loans and receivables and other financial liabilities are carried at amortized cost, using the effective interest rate method,
which approximates fair value given their short term nature.
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              2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

             Fair value hierarchy
Fair value estimates are classified within a three level hierarchy based on the lowest level of input that is significant to the
determination of fair value. The three levels are:

              Level 1    Unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;
             Level 2    Inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset or liability either directly or          
                             indirectly; and
             Level 3    Inputs that are not based on observable market data

             Investments in funds managed by the Corporation
Investments in funds managed by the Corporation are assessed to determine whether or not they are controlled. This
determination includes consideration of all factors and circumstances relevant to the investment, including: the extent
of the Corporation's direct and indirect interests in the fund, the level of compensation to be received from the fund for
management services provided to it and the extent of influence that the Corporation has over the fund. A fund is consol-
idated by the Corporation in circumstances where it is determined to be controlled. The interest of third parties in certain
investment funds qualify as financial liabilities measured at fair value through profit and loss and are accordingly presented
as such in the consolidated balance sheets and statements of income and comprehensive income. The Corporation’s
investments in underlying funds it manages are recognized as financial assets at fair value through profit and loss.

             Forward currency contracts are measured at fair value through profit or loss. These contracts are valued based
on the difference between the contract rate and current forward rates applied to the contracts’ notional amount. The
purpose of these financial instruments are to hedge the currency exposure of the investments in funds managed by
the Corporation which are measured at fair value through profit or loss. 

             Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheets if, and
only if, there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on
a net basis, or to realize the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously. As of September 30, 2017 and September
30, 2016, there are no material financial assets and financial liabilities to be offset.

             The change in fair value on forward contracts is recognized as Investment Gain (Loss) on the consolidated
statements of income and comprehensive income.

             Property and equipment
Property and equipment are recorded at cost less accumulated amortization and impairment costs. Costs include expenditures
that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset. Amortization based on the estimated useful life of the asset
is calculated as follows: 

             Furniture and fixtures                                        20% diminishing balance basis
             Computer hardware                                           30% diminishing balance basis
             Leasehold improvements                                   straight line over the term of the lease

             Assets’ residual values, useful lives and methods of amortization are reviewed at each reporting date, and
adjusted prospectively if appropriate.
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             Intangible assets

              Goodwill
Goodwill is initially measured as the excess of the aggregate of the consideration transferred and the fair value of the
non-controlling interest, if any, over the net identified assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If this consideration is
lower than the fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired, the difference is recognized in profit and loss.
Goodwill is assessed for impairment annually or more frequently if events or circumstances suggest that there may be
impairment. Goodwill is allocated to the appropriate cash generating unit (CGU); Private Debt Group and GPM, for the
purpose of impairment testing. The carrying value of a CGU is compared with the recoverable amount, which is the higher
of value in use and the fair value less costs of disposal. Any impairment is recognized immediately as an expense and is
not subsequently reversed.

              Computer software & website development
The costs of purchasing computer software & website development are capitalized where it is probable that future economic
benefits which are attributable to the assets will flow to the Corporation and the cost of the assets can be measured
reliably. Computer software & website development is recorded initially at cost and amortized on a 30% diminishing
balance basis.

             Income taxes
The Corporation records deferred tax assets and liabilities by measuring the amounts expected to be recovered from, or paid
to, the taxation authorities. The Corporation provides for income taxes using the asset and liability method of tax allocation.
Under this method, deferred income tax assets and liabilities are determined based on differences between the carrying
value and tax basis of assets and liabilities and are measured using the substantially enacted tax rates and laws that will
likely be in effect when the differences are expected to reverse. Deferred tax assets are recognized only when it is probable
that sufficient taxable income will be available against which deductible temporary differences may be utilized.

             Deposits
All deposits are measured at fair value and are shown as a current liability on the consolidated balance sheets. Deposits
are a normal course of business within the Private Debt Group, when borrowers are applying for loans they are required
to make a deposit towards their fees while the loan is being approved.

             Tenant inducements and leases
Tenant inducements are financial benefits provided by the owner of office space to the Corporation as an inducement to
enter into a lease of that office space. These tenant inducements are deferred and amortized on a straight-line basis over
the term of the lease.

             Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are classified
as operating leases. Payments made under operating leases (net of any incentives received from the lessor) are charged
to the statement of income on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

             Provisions
Provisions are recognized when the Corporation has a legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past event and it is
considered probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation. They are measured at
the present value of the expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and the rights specific to the obligations. Provisions are reviewed
at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates. In the event that it is considered no longer
probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation, the provision is reversed.
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              2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

             Stock-based compensation

              Stock Options
The Corporation applies the fair value based method of accounting for stock options granted to employees and directors.
The fair value of the stock options, as at the date of grant, is determined using the Black-Scholes option valuation model.
This compensation expense is recognized over the applicable vesting period with a corresponding increase in contributed
surplus, based on the amount of awards expected to vest.

              Key Employee Share Loan Plan
The Corporation issues non-recourse loans to employees to purchase treasury stock under the Key Employee Share Loan
Plan (the “Loan Plan”). The loans are not recorded as an asset on the balance sheet of the Corporation due to the non-
recourse nature of the loan and as such are treated for accounting as stock based compensation. Similar to a stock option,
the Corporation applies the fair value based method of accounting for the shares issued from treasury under this plan.
The fair value of the shares issued, as at the date of the purchase, is determined by a ten day trading average of the
Corporation’s stock. The stock based compensation expense is calculated using the Black-Scholes option valuation model.
The entirety of the compensation expense is recognized in the same period as the shares are issued from treasury, as
there is no vesting period. The shares ownership is passed to the employee at the issuance date of the treasury stock.
The shares issued to the employee are pledged as collateral against the loan, until the loan is fully repaid.

             Earnings per share
Earnings per share amounts are based on the application of the treasury stock method for the calculation of the dilutive
effect of stock options and other dilutive securities. Basic per share amounts are determined by dividing net income
attributable to equity owners by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding during the year. Diluted
per share amounts are determined by adjusting the weighted average number of shares outstanding for any dilutive effect
of stock options.

             Dividends
Dividends are recognized as a liability in the consolidated balance sheets in the period in which the dividends are approved
by the Corporation’s Board of Directors.

             Significant accounting judgements and estimates
The process of applying the Corporation’s accounting policies requires management to make significant judgements involving
assumptions and estimates. Key assumptions and estimates which could have a material impact on the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities are described below.

              Fair values of financial investments
In situations where the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities cannot be derived from active markets, they
are determined using other methodology which requires a degree of judgement. Changes in the underlying assumptions
could affect the reported financial assets and financial liabilities.

              Deferred tax assets
Deferred tax assets are recognized for unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable income will be available
against which the losses can be utilized. Significant management judgement is required to determine whether it is probable
that taxable income will be available in the future to utilize tax losses. Changes in the underlying assumptions could affect
whether unused tax losses are recognized as a deferred tax asset or not.

              Provision for other liabilities
Provisions are liabilities of the Corporation, including long-term incentive bonus obligation and litigation, which are of
uncertain timing or amount. Due to the nature of the provisions, a considerable part of their determination is based on
estimates and judgements, including assumptions concerning the future. The actual outcome of these uncertain factors
may be materially different from the estimates, causing differences with the estimated provisions.
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             3. Discontinued Operations
The Corporation and Koloshuk Farrugia Corp. (“KFC”), a related party, entered into an agreement for the Corporation to
sell to KFC all of the common shares of IMFC held by the Corporation and an outstanding loan owed to the Corporation
by IMFC. KFC is a holding company wholly owned by Victor Koloshuk, the Executive Chairman, a director and a significant
shareholder of IAM. On March 31, 2017, the Corporation completed the sale of all its shares of IMFC. The Corporation
received cash consideration of $1,000,000 in respect of the sale.

             Prior to the sale agreement IAM’s Board of Directors established a committee comprised of two independent
directors (the “Independent Committee”) to consider potential strategic alternatives for IMFC. Following the Independent
Committee’s review of alternatives, consideration of various stakeholders and discussions with a number of potential
buyers by the Independent Committee, the Board concluded that the Corporation should proceed with the agreement
with KFC. 

             The Corporation has recorded a gain on sale of discontinued operations, net of income taxes, of $630,004.

Consideration - Cash received                                                                                                          $   1,000,000
Less: net assets of IMFC disposed                                                                                                            (176,489)

                                                                                                                                                823,511
Expenses related to the sale                                                                                                                     (124,419)
Tax on proceeds                                                                                                                                                   -

Gain on sale, net of taxes                                                                                                                          699,092
Net loss and comprehensive loss from discontinued operations, net of taxes                                                  (69,088)

Gain from discontinued operations, net of taxes                                                                                $      630,004

             For the years ended September 30, 2017 and 2016, the operating performance of IMFC has been included in
the Corporation’s consolidated statement of income and comprehensive income as “discontinued operations” and comprised
the following:

                                                                                                                                                              September 30, 2017              September 30, 2016

Revenue                                                                                                   $      230,718        $      981,832
Expenses                                                                                                            299,806                 877,510

Net income (loss) and comprehensive income (loss) from
discontinued operations, net of taxes                                                                 $       (69,088)       $      104,322

             On December 2, 2013, the Corporation completed the sale of all its shares of BluMont Capital Corporation
(“BluMont Capital”). The Corporation recognized consideration of $9,733,991 in respect of the sale and recorded a gain
from discontinued operations, net of income taxes, of $6,512,026 in fiscal 2014.

             The Corporation recognized consideration of $395,308 in respect to the Corporation’s final share of performance
fees realized by the purchaser of BluMont Capital and recorded a gain from discontinued operations, net of related income
tax adjustments, of $401,294 in fiscal 2016. The Corporation is not entitled to any further consideration.

                                                                                                                                                              September 30, 2017              September 30, 2016

Gain on discontinued operations, net of income taxes                                         $                   -        $      401,294
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             4. Restricted Cash Equivalents
The Corporation has $nil restricted cash equivalents as at September 30, 2017 (September 30, 2016: $0.8 million)
which was invested in a cashable guaranteed investment certificate (GIC) as collateral for the forward currency contract.
The GIC was held with a Canadian Schedule 1 Bank with a credit rating of Aa2.

             5. Investments in Funds Managed by the Corporation

                                                                                                                                                              September 30, 2017              September 30, 2016

Fair value through profit or loss investments in funds 
      managed by the Corporation                                                                       $                   -        $   3,899,126
Fair value of forward currency contract                                                                                    -                        200
Unlisted investments in funds managed by the Corporation                                       1,259,908                 198,389

                                                                                                        $   1,259,908        $   4,097,715
Less amount included in current assets                                                                                   -             (3,899,326)

                                                                                                        $   1,259,908        $      198,389

             The Corporation’s maximum exposure to loss from its investments in funds managed by the Corporation is equal
to the total fair value of its investments.

             The Corporation’s fair value through profit or loss investments in funds managed by the Corporation were sold
in January 2017. The Corporation and KFC, a related party, entered into an agreement for the Corporation to sell all its
units of the AlphaCentric/IMFC Managed Futures Strategy Fund to KFC at fair market value. KFC is a holding company
wholly owned by Victor Koloshuk, the Executive Chairman, a director and a significant shareholder of IAM.

             As at September 30, 2017, the Corporation no longer had a controlling interest in any funds (September 30,
2016: one fund). The prior year includes all of the assets, liabilities and results of operations of the fund it controlled
in the Corporation’s consolidated financial statements. The interest of third parties in investments in funds managed by
the Corporation in the amount of $nil has been included as a liability on the Corporation’s consolidated balance sheet
as at September 30, 2017 (September 30, 2016: $1,416,677).

             The Corporation held a significant portion of investments in funds managed by the Corporation in US dollar currency.
The Corporation was therefore exposed to foreign exchange risk, as the value of the financial assets were in US dollars
and would fluctuate due to changes in foreign exchange rates. On December 31, 2016 the Corporation settled its forward
currency contract.

             As at September 30, 2017, the unlisted investments in funds managed by the Corporation are the Corporation’s
investments in the Integrated Private Debt Fund V LP (“IPD Fund V”) and IAM Infrastructure Private Debt Fund LP (“IAM
Infrastructure Fund”) which are managed by the Private Debt Group. As at September 30, 2017 the Corporation’s capital
called in IPD Fund V is $1,014,992 (September 30, 2016 – $202,439) and capital called in IAM Infrastructure Fund
is $310,865 (September 30, 2016 – $nil). The Corporation owns 0.3% of IPD Fund V with total net assets and committed
capital of $667,000,000 at September 30, 2017 and September 30, 2016. The Corporation owns 0.6% of IAM
Infrastructure Fund with total net assets and committed capital of $347,000,000 at September 30, 2017 and September
30, 2016. The Corporation has no current intentions to provide financial or other support to the IPD Fund V or IAM
Infrastructure Fund, including intentions to assist the fund in obtaining financial support. IPD Fund V and IAM
Infrastructure Fund are pooled funds that repay principal over the life of the fund, which is up to 14 years for IPD Fund
V and up to 28 years for IAM Infrastructure Fund.                                                                                                     
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             6. Loan Receivable and Other Assets

                                                                                                                                                              September 30, 2017              September 30, 2016

Loan Receivable (a)                                                                                            $   1,840,766        $   3,692,535
Management loan (b)                                                                                                     35,000                             -
Other                                                                                                              10,038                   10,038

                                                                                                        $   1,885,804        $   3,702,573
Less amount included in current assets (c)                                                                (1,840,766)                 (92,535)

                                                                                                        $         45,038        $   3,610,038

             (a) The loan receivable is to a borrower in a Private Debt Group Fund. In fiscal 2016, the Corporation entered
into an agreement to lend up to $4.0 million to be repaid within 18 months, or if needed an extension as agreed by the
counterparty. The loan receivable is collateralized by a first charge over the assets of the borrower. The interest rate is
8.0% per annum on loan receivable advances, the Corporation’s maximum exposure to loss from this loan receivable is
equal to the total amount advanced plus interest accrued. During fiscal 2017 the borrower started monthly repayments
of principal and interest, the cash received during the year was $2.1 million. During the year ended September 30, 2017
$255,451 of interest was earned and accrued (September 30, 2016 – $92,535).

             The Corporation received a 10% ownership of Hornepayne Power Inc. as part of the loan receivable refinancing.
The ownership position is estimated to have nil value as at September 30, 2017, and September 30, 2016.

             (b) The management loan is collateralized against the shares of the Corporation acquired by the employee under
the loan agreement. The loan bears interest at 2.25% annually, is secured by the shares of IAM held by the employee
and other security posted by the employee, and is repayable in accordance with its loan agreement. In the event of
terminations, the repayment schedule of the principal amount outstanding will be accelerated.

             (c) Amount in current assets includes principal and interest receivable due within fiscal 2018.

             7. Property and Equipment

                                                                                                                          FURNITURE AND                            COMPUTER                                             

                                                                                                                                     FIXTURES                           HARDWARE                                   TOTAL

Cost              
At September 30, 2015                                                      $       201,442        $       413,058        $       614,500
Additions                                                                                30,905                   11,772                   42,677

At September 30, 2016                                                      $       232,347        $       424,830        $       657,177
Additions                                                                                          -                     2,584                     2,584
Transfer to discontinued operations                                                  (7,089)                 (30,857)                 (37,946)

At September 30, 2017                                                      $       225,258        $       396,557        $       621,815

Accumulated Amortization
At September 30, 2015                                                      $      (160,655)       $      (344,803)       $      (505,458)
Amortization                                                                                 (7,902)                 (19,340)                 (27,242)
Transfer to discontinued operations                                                     (151)                   (2,950)                   (3,101)

At September 30, 2016                                                      $      (168,708)       $      (367,093)       $      (535,801)
Amortization                                                                                 (9,296)                 (15,459)                 (24,755)
Transfer to discontinued operations                                                   6,487                   23,273                   29,760

At September 30, 2017                                                      $      (171,517)       $      (359,279)       $      (530,796)

Net Book Value

At September 30, 2016                                                      $         63,639        $         57,737        $       121,376

At September 30, 2017                                                      $         53,741        $         37,278        $         91,019
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             8. Goodwill and Intangible Assets

                                                                                                                                                                                COMPUTER                                             

                                                                                                                                                                             SOFTWARE & 

                                                                                                                                    GOODWILL                               WEBSITE                                   TOTAL

Cost              
As at September 30, 2015                                                  $    1,578,471        $       671,016        $    2,249,487
Additions                                                                                          -                   38,361                   38,361

As at September 30, 2016                                                  $    1,578,471        $       709,377        $    2,287,848
Additions                                                                                          -                             -                             -
Transfer to discontinued operations                                                           -                  (30,928)                 (30,928)

As at September 30, 2017                                                  $    1,578,471        $       678,449        $    2,256,920

Accumulated Amortization
As at September 30, 2015                                                  $                   -        $      (588,080)       $      (588,080)
Amortization                                                                                          -                  (30,431)                 (30,431)
Transfer to discontinued operations                                                           -                    (1,381)                   (1,381)

As at September 30, 2016                                                  $                   -        $      (619,892)       $      (619,892)
Amortization                                                                                          -                  (25,879)                 (25,879)
Transfer to discontinued operations                                                           -                   27,704                   27,704

As at September 30, 2017                                                  $                   -        $      (618,067)       $      (618,067)

Net Book Value at:

September 30, 2016                                                          $    1,578,471        $         89,485        $    1,667,956

September 30, 2017                                                          $    1,578,471        $         60,382        $    1,638,853

              9. Shareholders’ Equity

             a) Capital Stock
At September 30, 2017 the Corporation had 28.2 million shares outstanding (2016 – 27.4 million).

             On May 11, 2017, the Corporation announced its notice of the renewal of its Normal Course Issuer Bid (“NCIB”)
in which the Corporation is permitted to purchase, for cancellation, up to 1,397,715 common shares of the Corporation
at prevailing market prices during the 12 month period commencing May 24, 2017 and ending May 23, 2018.

             From October 1, 2016 to September 30, 2017 the Corporation acquired no common shares under the NCIB
(September 30, 2016 – acquired no common shares).

             b) Employee Share Purchase Plan
The Corporation had an Employee Share Purchase Plan (the “Plan”) which was approved at the Corporation’s meeting
of shareholders in February 2015. Under the Plan, eligible employees were permitted by the Corporation to purchase
common shares from the treasury of the Corporation. The maximum number of common shares permitted to be issued
under the Plan was 1,500,000 common shares.

             The plan was discontinued as of July 15, 2016. During the year ended September 30, 2016 the Corporation
issued 309,590 common shares from treasury for cash of $309,590 and accrued a bonus obligation of $77,400 payable
to those eligible employees. The purchase price for the shares of the Plan was determined by using the stock’s price
history before the purchase date.
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             c) Key Employee Share Loan Plan
The Corporation has a Loan Plan which was approved at the Corporation’s special meeting of the shareholders in July
2016. Under the Loan Plan, eligible employees may be permitted by the Corporation to purchase common shares from
treasury of the Corporation with a loan from the Corporation. The employees’ shares are pledged as collateral for the loan,
which has an annual interest rate of 2.25% and a term of 5 years. The maximum number of common shares that may
be issued under the Loan Plan is 1,250,000 common shares. During the year ended September 30, 2017 the Corporation
issued 83,332 common shares (September 30, 2016 – 517,695) from treasury for loans receivable from employees of
$129,998 (September 30, 2016 – $584,995). The purchase price $1.56 (September 30, 2016 – $1.13) for the shares
of the Loan Plan was determined by using the stock’s price history before the purchase date. Due to the nonrecourse
nature of the employees’ loans, the Corporation accounts for the Loan Plan as stock based compensation.

             The stock based compensation expense is calculated using the Black-Scholes option valuation model. The
entirety of the compensation expense of $19,137 (September 30, 2016 - $74,895) is recognized in the same period as
the stock was issued from treasury, as there is no vesting period. The assumptions used to determine the fair value of
the benefit of $0.23 per share (September 30, 2016 - $0.145 per share) for the Loan Plan included: (i) purchase price
of $1.56 (September 30, 2016 - $1.13); (ii) risk-free interest rate of 1.71% (September 30, 2016 - 0.98%) (iii) employee
loan term of 5 years; (iv) expected volatility of the Corporation stock of 32.2% (September 30, 2016 - 30.7%); (v)
expected forfeiture rate of 0% (September 30, 2016 - 0%) and (vi) expected dividend yield of 5.2% (September 30,
2016 - 5.3%).

             d) Stock Option Plan
The Corporation has an incentive stock option plan for the executives, key employees, directors and consultants to the
Corporation. The Corporation does not issue equity or cash in return for the cancellation of options.

             The changes in the stock options are as follows:

                                                                                                                                                                                                                              WEIGHTED

                                                                                                                                                                         TOTAL NUMBER               AVERAGE EXERCISE 

                                                                                                                                                                              OF OPTIONS                                    PRICE

September 30, 2016
Outstanding at beginning of year                                                                              1,925,000        $             0.80
Granted                                                                                                            200,000        $             1.02
Exercised                                                                                                           (230,000)       $             0.71
Cancelled and expired                                                                                                 (50,000)       $             0.70

Outstanding at end of year                                                                                       1,845,000        $             0.83

September 30, 2017
Granted                                                                                                            580,000        $             1.52
Exercised                                                                                                           (695,000)       $             0.70
Cancelled and expired                                                                                                 (10,000)       $             0.96

Outstanding at end of year                                                                                       1,720,000        $             1.12

             The exercise prices for the option grants’ during fiscal 2017, of 300,000 options and 280,000 options were
determined by using the stock price’s 10 trading day trading history before the grant date. The average fair value of the
options granted during the year has been estimated to be $0.31 and $0.27 per option using the Black-Scholes option
pricing model. The assumptions used to determine the fair value of the options on the grant date included: (i) exercise
price of $1.48 and $1.56; (ii) risk-free interest rate of 1.14% and 1.71%; (iii) expected option life of 7 years; (iv)
expected volatility of 34.1% and 32.3%; (v) expected forfeiture rate of 0% and 13.0% and (vi) expected dividend yield
of 4.1% and 5.1%.

             Incentive stock options vest one-third on each of the second, third and fourth anniversary of the date of grant.
The expense relating to the cancelled options is not reversed due to a forfeiture rate being included in the option grant’s
fair value calculation.
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             9. Shareholders’ Equity (continued)

             The following table summarizes information about the Corporation’s stock option plan at September 30, 2017:

                                                                                    NUMBER OF                          NUMBER OF                                          

                                                                                         OPTIONS                  OPTIONS VESTED                                                                                          

                                                                                 OUTSTANDING                AND EXERCISABLE                EXERCISE PRICE                            EXPIRY DATE

                          280,000                   -        $           1.56              2024
                          300,000                   -        $           1.48              2024
                            50,000                   -        $           1.07              2023
                          160,000         53,333        $           1.07              2022
                          150,000                   -        $           1.00              2022
                          500,000       166,667        $           0.86              2022
                          160,000       106,667        $           0.90              2021
                            40,000         40,000        $           0.55              2019
                            80,000         80,000        $           0.90              2018

                       1,720,000       446,667

             e) Basic and diluted earnings per share
The following table presents the calculation of basic and diluted earnings per common share.

                                                                                                                                                                                    2017                                     2016

Numerator
      Net income attributed to common shareholders
      of the Corporation – basic and diluted                                                  $   1,809,350        $      119,236

Denominator
      Weighted average number of common shares, basic                                         27,725,468            26,661,160
Dilutive effect of employee stock options                                                                     338,369                 372,310

                                                                                                            28,063,837            27,033,470
Earnings per common share, basic and diluted                                                   $             0.06        $             0.00

             f) Non-controlling interest
Non-controlling interest represents equity interest owned by outside parties in a subsidiary.

                                                                                                                                                              September 30, 2017              September 30, 2016

Subsidiary of the Corporation                                                                             $                42        $           4,485
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             10. Dividends
The following dividend was declared by the Corporation during the year ended September 30, 2017:

                                                                                                                                                                    CASH DIVIDEND                   TOTAL DIVIDEND

RECORD DATE                                                                                                               PAYMENT DATE                           PER SHARE                               AMOUNT

August 17, 2017 – regular dividend                             September 7, 2017        $             0.06        $   1,684,758

The following dividend was declared by the Corporation during the year ended September 30, 2016:

                                                                                                                                                                    CASH DIVIDEND                   TOTAL DIVIDEND

RECORD DATE                                                                                                               PAYMENT DATE                           PER SHARE                               AMOUNT

August 18, 2016 – regular dividend                             September 8, 2016        $             0.06        $   1,611,996

             11. Investment Loss

YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30                                                                                                                                                          2017                                     2016

Investments in funds managed by the Corporation at fair value
      through profit or loss                                                                                  $     (482,821)       $     (641,012)
Unlisted investments in funds managed by the Corporation 
      at fair value through profit or loss                                                                         (20,895)-                           -
Realized and unrealized gain (loss) on forward currency contract                                   (55,600)                109,200

                                                                                                        $     (559,316)       $     (531,812)

             The Corporation owned investments in funds managed by the Corporation and had a forward currency contract
that settled in December 2016; and recognizes the change in fair value on the consolidated statements of income
(loss) and comprehensive income (loss).

             Included in these amounts is an investment loss of $202,706 for the year ended September 30, 2017 (2016
– loss of $220,849) in respect of funds consolidated in these financial statements that is attributed to the interest of
third parties in investments in funds managed by the Corporation.

             12. Selling, General and Administration Expenses
             The following table presents the breakdown of selling, general and administrative expenses by nature:

YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30                                                                                                                                                          2017                                     2016

Salaries and benefits                                                                                        $   9,809,247        $   9,162,182
Advertising and marketing                                                                                          175,915                 174,359
Travel and entertainment                                                                                            239,611                 361,565
Consulting fees                                                                                                          110,518                   95,175
Occupancy                                                                                                            668,091                 651,172
Professional fees                                                                                                       392,221                 770,902
Fees and licences                                                                                                        43,898                   43,625
Office expenses and other                                                                                          564,206                 556,010

                                                                                                        $ 12,003,707        $ 11,814,990
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             13. Income Taxes from Continuing Operations

                                                                                                                                                                                    2017                                     2016

Current income taxes:
Based on taxable profits for the year                                                                   $      614,513        $      355,607

Total current income taxes                                                                                $      614,513        $      355,607

Deferred income taxes:
Origination and reversal of temporary differences                                                       (102,843)               (442,200)

Income taxes (recovery) expense                                                                        $      511,670        $       (86,593)

             The following table reconciles income taxes calculated at the Canadian statutory corporation income tax rate
with the provision for income taxes:

                                                                                                                                                                                    2017                                     2016

Income (loss) before income taxes                                                                     $   1,686,573        $     (452,486)
Canadian statutory income tax rate                                                                                26.5%                    26.5%
Income taxes (recovery) based on Canadian statutory income tax rate                            446,942                (119,909)
Utilization of tax losses for which an income tax benefit was not
      previously recognized                                                                                                      -                  (33,538)
Utilization of net capital losses previously not recognized                                              (11,099)                            -
Losses for which an income tax benefit has not been previously
      recognized                                                                                                                     -                  (92,754)
Utilization of tax losses for discontinued operations                                                       28,090                   27,646
Non-deductible items                                                                                                  28,393                 102,105
Prior years’ and other adjustments                                                                                19,344                   29,857

Income taxes (recovery) expense, as reported                                                      $      511,670        $       (86,593)
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             Deferred income taxes reflect the net tax effects of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for income tax purposes. The movement in
significant components of the Corporation’s deferred income tax liabilities and assets for the year ended September 30,
2017 is as follows:

                                                                                                                                   RECOGNIZED                  ADJUSTMENTS                                        

                                                                                                     AS AT             IN INCOME (FROM                      RELATED TO                                AS AT

                                                                                     SEPTEMBER 30,                    CONTINUING                 DISCONTINUED               SEPTEMBER 30,

                                                                                                      2016                    OPERATIONS)                     OPERATIONS                                2017

Deferred income tax assets
Unused non-capital tax losses                         $    718,284        $     (48,064) $      28,089        $   698,309
Other                                                               6,163                16,889                                    23,052
Long-term incentive bonus obligation                     148,135              130,291                                  278,426

Total deferred income tax assets                      $    872,582        $      99,116 $      28,089        $   999,787

Deferred income tax liabilities
Other                                                               9,121                 (3,728)                   -                  5,393

Total deferred income tax liabilities                  $        9,121                 (3,728)                   -        $       5,393

Net deferred income tax assets                        $    863,461        $    102,844 $      28,089        $   994,394

             The movement in significant components of the Corporation’s deferred income tax liabilities and assets for the
year ended September 30, 2016 is as follows:

                                                                                                                                                                            RECOGNIZED                                        

                                                                                                                                               AS AT                        IN INCOME                                AS AT

                                                                                                                              SEPTEMBER 30,         (FROM CONTINUING               SEPTEMBER 30,

                                                                                                                                               2015                    OPERATIONS)                                2016

Deferred income tax assets
Unused non-capital tax losses                                                     $    324,468 $    393,816        $    718,284
Other                                                                                         27,127       (20,964)                 6,163
Long-term incentive bonus obligation                                                   93,280         54,855              148,135

Total deferred income tax assets                                                  $    444,875 $    427,707        $    872,582

Deferred income tax liabilities
Other                                                                                         23,614       (14,493)                 9,121
Total deferred income tax liabilities                                             $      23,614 $    (14,493)       $        9,121

Net deferred income tax assets                                                    $    421,261 $    442,200        $    863,461

             The ultimate realization of deferred tax assets is dependent upon future taxable profits during the periods in
which those temporary differences become deductible. Management considers the expected reversal of deferred tax liabilities
and projected future taxable income in making this assessment. Based upon the level of historical taxable income and
projections for future taxable income over the periods in which the deferred tax assets are deductible, management
believes it is probable that the Corporation will realize the benefits of these deductible differences.

             Deferred income tax assets are recognized for tax losses carried forward to the extent that the realization of the
related tax benefit through future taxable profits is probable.

             The capital losses carried forward as at September 30, 2017 are $339,110 (September 30, 2016 – $933,000),
the benefit of which has not been given accounting recognition.



38

INTEGRATED ASSET MANAGEMENT CORP.  2017 ANNUAL REPORT  

             14. Fair Value Measurements
Financial instruments are classified based on categories as follows:

                                                                                                                                                                          FAIR VALUE                           LOANS AND

                                                                                                                                                                             THROUGH                    RECEIVABLE OR

                                                                                                                                                                                PROFIT                 OTHER FINANCIAL

                                                                                                                                                                               OR LOSS                           LIABILITIES

As at September 30, 2017
Restricted cash and cash equivalents                                                                 $                   -        $                  -
Receivables                                                                                                                           -                 465,359
Investments in funds managed by the Corporation                                                     1,259,908                             -
Other assets                                                                                                                          -              1,885,804

Total financial assets                                                                                         $    1,259,908        $   2,351,163

Payables and accruals                                                                                       $                   -        $   4,371,935
Deposits                                                                                                                            -                   25,000
Interest of third parties in investments
      in funds managed by the Corporation                                                                               -                             -

Total financial liabilities                                                                                    $                   -        $   4,396,935

As at September 30, 2016
Restricted cash and cash equivalents                                                                 $                   -        $      802,827
Receivables                                                                                                                           -                 735,847
Investments in funds managed by the Corporation                                                     4,097,715                             -
Other assets                                                                                                                          -              3,702,573

Total financial assets                                                                                         $    4,097,715        $   5,241,247

Payables and accruals                                                                                       $                   -        $   2,969,315
Deposits                                                                                                                            -                 125,000
Interest of third parties in investments
      in funds managed by the Corporation                                                                1,416,677                             -

Total financial liabilities                                                                                    $    1,416,677        $   3,094,315

          

             15. Risk Management
The Corporation’s financial instruments are subject to specific risks as described below.

             Market Risk
Market risk is the risk of loss arising from adverse changes in market rates and prices, such as interest rates, equity
market fluctuations and other relevant market rate or price changes.

             The Corporation's only substantive financial instrument affected by market risk is its investments in funds
managed by the Corporation, which consist of capital the Corporation invests in new products in order to ensure their
successful launch.

             Investments currently consist of private debt funds, based on the fair value of the investments in funds managed
by the Corporation at September 30, 2017, the effect of a 10% increase or decline in the value of investments would result
in approximately a $126,000 (September 30, 2016 - $410,000) unrealized gain or loss on the Corporation’s consolidated
statement of income and comprehensive income.

             The Corporation holds approximately US $nil in cash and cash equivalents as at September 30, 2017 (September
30, 2016 - $141,000 in discontinued operations). Accordingly, the Corporation would not be materially impacted if the
US dollar strengthened or weakened against the Canadian dollar.
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             Credit Risk
Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument fails to discharge an obligation and causes financial loss to
another party. The Corporation is exposed to credit risk principally on its receivables which have normal thirty day terms.
The majority of the receivables relate to management fees from the funds managed by the Corporation and other trade
receivables which are subject to minimal risk. No allowance for bad debts has been recorded.

             Approximately 87% of the Corporation's receivables at September 30, 2017 are due within thirty days (September
30, 2016 – 78%). Approximately $1.8 million of a loan receivable has been classified as short term and is expected to
be paid within 9 months.

             The Corporation is exposed to credit risk of the counterparty of a $1.8 million loan receivable (Note 6). Credit
risk is considered to be moderate as the counterparty is a newly formed company acquiring assets in the biomass energy
sector. The loan receivable earns an 8% annual interest. Credit risk is managed by oversight of the counterparty by actively
monitoring credit exposure and the financial health of the counterparty. The Corporation has a first charge on all assets
of the counterparty.

             Cash and cash equivalents of the Corporation are held at Canadian Schedule 1 banks.

             Liquidity Risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that an entity will encounter difficulty in raising funds to meet cash flow commitments associated
with financial instruments. The Corporation has contractual obligations and financial liabilities and therefore is exposed
to liquidity risk. The purpose of liquidity management is to ensure that there is sufficient cash to meet all financial
commitments and obligations as they fall due. The Corporation monitors its current and expected cash flow requirements
to ensure it has sufficient cash and cash equivalents to meet its liquidity requirements in the short and longer terms. To
manage cash flow requirements, the Corporation maintains a sizeable cash balance held at Canadian Schedule 1 banks.
The Corporation has no outstanding borrowings at September 30, 2017 and 2016 and all payables and accrued liabilities
are due within one year.

             The Corporation is exposed to liquidity risk in its unlisted investments in funds managed by the Corporation.
These investments comprise the Corporation’s investment in IPD Fund V and IAM Infrastructure Fund which are managed
by the Private Debt Group. The liquidity risk of these investments that are pooled funds which repay principal over the
life of the fund, which is up to 14 years for IPD Fund V and up to 28 years for IAM Infrastructure Fund. The Corporation
cannot redeem out of the fund prior to maturity without risk of penalty or discount.

             Fair Value Hierarchy
Fair values are classified as Level 1 when the related security or derivative is actively traded and a quoted price is available.
If an instrument classified as Level 1 subsequently ceases to be actively traded, it is transferred out of Level 1. In such
cases, instruments are reclassified into Level 2, unless the measurement of its fair value requires the use of significant
unobservable inputs, in which case it is reclassified as Level 3. There were no transfers between levels during the year.

             If different levels of inputs are used to measure a financial instrument’s fair value, the classification within the
hierarchy is based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement.

             The following tables illustrate the classification of the Corporation’s financial instruments within the fair value
hierarchy as at September 30, 2017:

                                                                                     LEVEL 1                                LEVEL 2                                LEVEL 3                                   TOTAL

Investments in funds
         managed by the Corporation $ - $ - $ 1,259,908 $ 1,259,908
Loan Receivable $ - $ - $ 1,840,766 $ 1,840,766

             The following tables illustrate the classification of the Corporation’s financial instruments within the fair value
hierarchy as at September 30, 2016:

                                                                                     LEVEL 1                                LEVEL 2                                LEVEL 3                                   TOTAL

Investments in funds
         managed by the Corporation $ 3,899,126 $ 200 $ 198,389 $ 4,097,715
Loan Receivable $ - $ - $ 3,600,000 $ 3,600,000
Interest of third parties in 
         investments in funds managed
         by the Corporation(a) $ 1,416,677 $ - $ - $ 1,416,677
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             15. Risk Management (continued)
             The reconciliation for Level 3 is as follows:

                                                                                                                                                               UNLISTED INVESTMENTS                                            

                                                                                                                                                                      IN FUNDS MANAGED                                    LOAN

                                                                                                                                                                    BY THE CORPORATION                          RECEIVABLE

As at September 30, 2015                                                                                $         50,540        $                  -
Sales                                                                                                                   (92,343)                            -
Purchases                                                                                                                 202,439              3,600,000
Total realized gain: included in statement of income
      and comprehensive income                                                                                   37,753                             -

As at September 30, 2016                                                                                $      198,389        $   3,600,000
Proceeds                                                                                                                   (41,004)           (2,014,685)
Purchases                                                                                                              1,123,418                 255,451
Total unrealized loss: included in statement of income
      and comprehensive income                                                                                  (20,895)                            -

As at September 30, 2017                                                                                $ 1,259,908 (b)       $ 1,840,766 (c)

      (a) The measurement of the fair values of the interest of third parties in investments in funds managed by the
Corporation is based on the third parties’ ownership percentage of the net asset value of the investment in funds managed
by the Corporation. There were no changes in the fair values that are attributable to changes in the credit risk of this liability.

             (b) The measurement of the fair value of the unlisted investments in funds managed by the Corporation at
September 30, 2017 is based on the share of the fair value of the loan portfolio held by the Corporation of IPD Fund V
and IAM Infrastructure Fund. The fair value of the loan portfolio in the Funds is based on the present value of the sum
of all future contracted interest and principal receipts based on the interest rates in effect if the loans had been made
as of the reporting date of the Funds. The estimated fair values of all other financial instruments in the Funds approximate
their carrying values in the Funds’ balance sheet. If there was a 10% increase or decrease in the fair value of the loan
portfolios, net income would have increased or decreased by approximately $126,000.

      (c) The measurement of the fair value of the loan receivable is based on the outstanding note receivable plus
accrued interest at September 30, 2017. If there was a 10% increase or decrease in the fair value of the loan receivable,
net income would have increased or decreased by approximately $184,000 (September 30, 2016 - $360,000)

             16. Capital Management
The Corporation's capital is comprised solely of Shareholders' Equity, as disclosed on the Corporation's consolidated
balance sheet. The Corporation has no debt and has determined that debt will not be a material component of its capital
structure at this time.

             The Corporation's primary objectives when managing capital are:

             (i)   To maintain financial strength;
             (ii)  To manage liquidity requirements;
             (iii) To provide a sufficient level of shareholders' equity and cash on hand to fund anticipated
                    dividend payments;
             (iv)  To provide financial flexibility to fund product initiatives and possible acquisitions;
             (v)   To maintain compliance with regulatory capital requirements; and,
             (vi)  To maximize returns for shareholders over the long term.

             The Corporation's registrations with securities commissions in Canada require it to maintain a minimum level
of regulatory capital and, as at September 30, 2017 and 2016, the Corporation met its capital requirements.
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             17. Commitments
(a) Future minimum annual lease payments under operating leases as at September 30, 2017 are as follows:

2018                                                                                                                                              $      686,940

             (b) The Corporation has agreed to indemnify its directors in accordance with its by-laws. The Corporation
maintains insurance policies that may provide coverage against certain claims. 

             (c) The Corporation made a commitment of $2,000,000 to IPD Fund V, as at September 30, 2017 the fund
has drawn $1,014,992 of that commitment. It is expected that the fund will draw down on the commitments by its
investors including the Corporation over a period of up to 24 months. The fund repays principal over the life of the fund
which is up to 14 years.

             (d) The Corporation made a commitment of $2,000,000 to IAM Infrastructure Fund, as at September 30, 2017
the fund has drawn $310,865 of that commitment. It is expected that the fund will draw down on the commitments by
its investors including the Corporation over a period of up to 24 months. The fund repays principal over the life of the
fund which is up to 28 years.

             18. Related Party Transactions
The remuneration of directors and other key management personnel of the Corporation are:

YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30                                                                                                                                                            2017                                     2016

Salaries and benefits                                                                                        $   2,436,183        $   1,971,700
Bonus                                                                                                            884,344                 690,661
Long-term incentive bonus obligation (a)                                                                       491,664                 207,000
Equity-based compensation (b)                                                                                       50,701                   79,802

Total                                                                                                   $   3,862,892        $   2,949,163

             (a) In October 2012, the Corporation agreed to make long-term incentive bonus payments to one executive, or
his estate, to take effect on September 30, 2018. These payments will be applicable for a period of up to 5 years and
each annual payment will be a defined percentage of up to 5% of the Corporation’s net after-tax profits in each of those
years, subject to a maximum of $500,000 annually.

             Depending on the Corporation’s net after-tax profits in the applicable fiscal years (fiscal years 2018 to 2022),
the Corporation would be obligated to make payments in aggregate ranging from nil to a maximum of $2,500,000.

             The Corporation accounts for this liability by estimating the present value of the estimated payments to be made
using a discount rate of 7%. The Corporation accrues amounts quarterly, calculated on a straight line basis which will
accumulate over a five year period, beginning in fiscal 2013, to provide for the estimated liability for future payments.
$491,664 was expensed in fiscal 2017 and in aggregate, $1,050,664 was accrued as at September 30, 2017 ($559,000
at September 30, 2016).

             (b) Equity-based compensation is comprised of the value of the stock options and the Loan Plan for key employees.
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             19. Future Changes in Accounting Policies
The Corporation is currently evaluating the impact that the following new standards issued or amended by the IASB will
have on its financial statements. IAM has decided not to early adopt any of the new or amended standards.

             International Accounting Standard                                                                                       Effective Date
             IFRS 15 – Revenue from contracts with customers                                                            October 1, 2018
             IFRS 9 – Financial Instruments                                                                                        October 1, 2018
             IFRS 16 – Leases                                                                                                            October 1, 2019

             IFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers, establishes a single, comprehensive revenue recognition
model for all contracts with customers to improve comparability within industries, across industries, and across capital
markets. It contains principles that an entity will apply to determine the measurement of revenue and timing of when it
is recognized. The underlying principle is that an entity will recognize revenue to depict the transfer of goods or services
to customers at an amount that the entity expects to be entitled to in exchange for those goods or services. It also contains
new disclosure requirements.

             IFRS 9, Financial Instruments (“IFRS 9”), will replace IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement (“IAS 39”). IFRS 9 uses a single approach to determine whether a financial asset is measured at amortized
cost or fair value, replacing the multiple rules presently in IAS 39. The approach in IFRS 9 is based on how an entity
manages its financial instruments in the context of its business model and the contractual cash flow characteristics of
the financial assets. The new standard also requires a single impairment method to be used, replacing the multiple impairment
methods in IAS 39.

             IFRS 16, Leases (“IFRS 16”), will replace IAS 17. IFRS 16 requires lessees to recognize lease liability reflecting
future lease payments and a “right-of-use asset” for virtually all lease contracts. The IASB has included an optional
exemption for certain short-term leases and leases of low-value assets.

             There are no other IFRS interpretations that are not yet effective that would be expected to have a material
impact on the financial statements.

             20. Subsequent Events
On November 16, 2017, the Corporation’s Board of Directors approved payment of the first quarterly cash dividend in
the amount of $0.02 per outstanding share, approximately $0.6 million based on the number of shares outstanding at
that date. This dividend will be paid on December 20, 2017 to shareholders of record on November 30, 2017.
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